MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE GURNEE VILLAGE BOARD
GURNEE VILLAGE HALL
DBECEMBER 62004FEBRUARY 7, 2005

The meeting was called to order at 7:3840 p.m. by Mayor Rudny.

Roll Call, Present: Heneiis ; ; ; ;
KevaDamijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarikik
Absent: None
None
Other officials present: James T. Hayner, Village Administrator

Rudolph Magna, Village Attorney

. igiclski_Di i

Dudley Onderdonk, Director of Community Development
Tracy Velkover, Village Planner

David Ziegler, Village Engineer

Jay Patrick, Police Commander

Tracy Velkover-Village Planner

Patrick Muetz, RI9/Management Analyst/P10

MayorRudny-led-the Pledgeof-AHegianee-Mayor Rudny led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Rudny stated Sean Maher, who attended Warren Township High School, was Killed in
action in Irag. He asked for a moment of silence to remember this courageous young man. The
wake will be held on Thursday at the Almond Campus.

From the audience, Mr. Tom Daily, 1861 Pine Meadow, suggested the developer from the
previous Public Hearing not create a cul-de-sac, but a lazy “J” street exiting on Fuller Road with
three (3) houses on one side and four (4) on the other. With heavy snow storms and shared
drives, there is only one (1) side to pile the snow. You would also need to have nice neighbors.

Mayor Rudny stated the Village Board does not want shared driveways either.

The Village Administrator stated the Village prefers a minimum of three hundred (300) feet
between streets and he will have to check if there is that much distance between Red Pine
Avenue and the proposed street.

Mr. Daily asked what the difference would be between a street coming out on Fuller Road or
several driveways? There is a greater chance for accidents with driveways onto Fuller Road than
there is with a street with a stop sign.

Mayor Rudny stated the advantage of the cul-de-sac is no driveways on Fuller Road.

From the audience, Mr. Jeffrey Romano, 1915 Pine Meadow, stated his property in the Boulders
is a little more than the ten (10) to twelve (12) thousand sg. foot lots the developer was talking
about in the previous hearing.

From the audience, Mr. David Grosskopf, 3985 Dorchester, stated he does not want the
discussion tonight to include the use of the old police station property. He does not want to be
misconstrued as being disrespectful to the brave soldiers who gave their lives for his right to be




able to speak. He is concerned with the facts that have been presented to the public lately. Last
week there was a Committee-of-the-Whole meeting for possible adoption of the ICC Codes. He
is concerned with where the Village presently stands with the 1SO rating. The cover letter for
that presentation package from Trustee Thoma talked about the Village’s rating and
homeowner’s premiums. He asked if anyone could update him on where the Village stands with
the need for these codes?

Trustee Thoma stated per the last Village Board meeting the issue was remanded back to the
Building and Zoning Committee which is meeting this Thursday to discuss the matter.

Mr. Grosskopf stated it his understanding the Village filed for an extension because the work has
not been completed according to a letter from January 2004.

Trustee Thoma stated she would repeat it has been remanded to the Building and Zoning
Committee and will be discussed Thursday at a meeting open to the public.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he just wanted to know if the Village has known about the need to upgrade
building codes since January 2004.

Trustee Thoma stated as part of the April 2004 Budget Hearings, it was brought to the Village
Board’s attention that the codes needed to be updated.

Mr. Grosskopf asked if the Village will suffer a denigration of our current rating if these don’t
get passed soon?

Trustee Thoma stated the Building and Zoning Committee needs a chance to do the research.

Mr. Grosskopf stated the only reason he is asking is because the last line of Trustee Thoma’s
cover page states “the Village is doing this to upgrade the Fire Rating which reduces insurance
costs for businesses and citizens”. That is a different situation than if we are under the gun and
stand a chance of being denigrated. You are promoting lower insurance rates when if this work
doesn’t get done, there maybe an increase.

Trustee Thoma asked Mr. Grosskopf to give the Building and Zoning Committee a chance to
look at the issue.

Mayor Rudny stated Mr. Grosskopf should come to the meeting on Thursday.

The Village Attorney asked what BOCA Code the Village is presently under?

From the audience, Dudley Onderdonk, Director of Community Development, stated the Village
is currently operating under two (2) sets of codes. One is the 1989 CABO Code for single-
family and two-family homes and the 1996 BOCA Code for Mechanical/Commercial Codes.

The Village Attorney asked if those are updated every two (2) years?

The Director of Community Development responded the National Model Code Agencies update
them every three (3) years. He stated there is a complicating factor in that CABO no longer
exists and neither does BOCA because of a merger of organizations to create the new
International Code Council.

The Village Attorney stated this is something that has been pending for years. The Village could
have adopted several previous versions and upgraded. This is not something that has been
lingering for the last three (3) to four (4) years. There have been opportunities to update this
code for a number of years, but because it went for so long the Village has had to do a very large
leap, so it is not that we are being denigrated because it has been ignored for the last two (2) to
three (3) years. It has been overlooked since 1989 on CABO, so there is a great deal of
upgrading and that is what the Building and Zoning Committee is working on very hard.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he was just trying to get the facts straight on the timing and where it
actually stands. He stated there were figures presented at the same meeting regarding sprinkler




costs. He followed up the next day with an email on what he thinks are the true costs. A good
resource to use would have been the new Police Station. On every payment application that
comes before the Village Board the sprinkler contractor is listed at $28,000.00 or $2.56 per sq.
foot. The numbers presented were less than that. He thinks it is important to get the right
numbers to the public. There is a complicated energy calculation within those building codes
which will not make housing more affordable. Revision of the codes is a good thing for public
safety. At the last Plan Commission meeting information was relayed regarding a Village Board
meeting in August in which the Mayor stated that Ward Miller was present at the meeting “just
to tell the truth”. As it turns out, he wasn’t giving the right portrayal of what he was trying to
imply that night. Mr. Grosskopf asked if the Mayor had any comments?

Mayor Rudny responded he believed Ward Miller was there to tell the truth at the time. He did
not look at the information presented at the Plan Commission meeting. No one has given him
the information from a FEMA Director. He has not talked to this Director, so he stated he has no
comment on it. He stated Ward Miller is a hard-working individual with Stormwater
Management Commission and when he came before the Village Board to speak, he came to tell
the truth.

Mr. Grosskopf stated the implication of what Ward Miller said that night was that Gurnee would
be cut off from IEMA funding. That misled many people, including him.

Mayor Rudny stated if the bank produces the letter stating otherwise, he would have to agree. It
was agreed by the Plan Commission that the floodplain was not an issue at that meeting and the
Plan Commission moved forward without considering that.

Mr. Grosskopf stated the whole issue of tearing down the old police station was such a quagmire.
The Village placed itself in a perilous situation. The building was torn down on the premise of
mitigating a storm water situation. The impervious surface of the parking lot was left. The
church has used this lot for a long time and as long as they can continue to use it, that’s fine. He
would just like some consistency. The old police station was knocked down based on some
statement that the Village wouldn’t be conforming and getting IEMA funding.

Mayor Rudny stated that is a different situation than the bank development because the bank
property is owned by someone else and not the Village. The bank has development rights there.
The old police station property is owned by the Village and it is zoned public. In order for the
Village to develop that, the property would have to be sold and re-zoned. His belief is that
FEMA would look differently on that property because of the Village’s ownership. If the
Village were to sell that property for development and at the same time team up with FEMA to
buy other properties in the floodplain, it would not be looked upon favorably. In fact, the Village
received commendation from an association in Illinois of flood mitigation specialists for setting a
good example by razing the police station. The parking lot issue is something the Building and
Zoning Committee will be looking at. It may be recommended that the impervious surface needs
to be removed to meet some improvement in flood mitigation. The decision to raze the police
station was made in August. The flood occurred in May. Something had to be done about the
old police station because it was continually deteriorating. He believes no complications have
been created by that.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he thinks there is a problem with the way it sits now. It isn’t complying
with Stormwater Management. There is no silt fence around it. The structure that is draining the
site is full of about four (4) feet of soot. The site is not properly set-up.

Mayor Rudny stated Mr. Grosskopf’s remarks will be checked out. He thanked Mr. Grosskopf
for the input.

Mr. Grosskopf suggested the members of the original flood mitigation committee, including
Trustee Kovarik and Trustee Balmes, deal with this property while the Building and Zoning
Committee is busy with other issues. They are probably the most knowledgeable and most
gualified. He doesn’t think a dental hygienist can review appraisals as well as a mortgage banker
can.




Mayor Rudny stated the Building and Zoning Committee is just looking at the use of the
property, not flood mitigation issues. If that needs to be done, the help of Village staff and
experts will be incorporated.

Mr. Grosskopf stated the way the site sits is a glaring example. He stated the other Trustees
wrote the flood mitigation plan and they are being exiled. Maybe they are not running on the
right slate to get the assignment, but he thinks it is being botched.

Trustee Thoma stated the old police station is in the flood way and not the floodplain like the
proposed bank. As far as redeveloping the old police station site, a developer would have to
demonstrate that the capacity of the flood way is not changing.

The Trustees who wrote the flood mitigation plan would concur with that. It is stated on page
thirty-nine (39) Section three (3) of the Lake County Stormwater Management Watershed
Ordinance.

Mr. Grosskopf stated that is exactly the point. The ordinance is not being followed. There is the
ethical issue of the parking lot remaining. He asked Trustee Chamberlain if he was a member of
the church that uses the parking lot?

Trustee Chamberlain stated he was a member of that church. He stated he was not answering
political guestions.

Mr. Grosskopf stated these are not political questions. There is a liability position involving the
Village with the parking lot. Should special consideration be given to every other congregation
in the community because this church uses a public parking lot?

Mayor Rudny stated Mr. Grosskopf is making an accusation that special treatment is being given
to the church because one of the Trustees is a member.

Mr. Grosskopf stated the innuendo is there.

Mayor Rudny responded Mr. Grosskopf is creating the innuendo.

Mr. Grosskopf asked what happens if someone falls and hurts themselves? Who is the litigant?
Is it the Gurnee Community Church or the Village?

Mayor Rudny stated he doesn’t know what the usage of the parking is by the church. He knows
they have used it in the past. The Village will take a look at the usage of the lot. As far as future
uses, that will be looked into by the Building and Zoning Committee. He stated Mr. Grosskopf’s
input will be taken into consideration as to whether or not the lot should exist. It may be used by
other businesses in the community.

The Village Attorney stated the Village as a municipal body enjoys certain torte immunities,
more than individuals, unless there is willful or wanton misconduct. There is no condition that
exists that is different than if the building was there. The Village does not suffer any adverse
possession or implied easement by allowing a private party to park there. At some point, the
Village should have a policy on the use of the lot. If you start to show preference, an issue may
come up. Village staff will look into storm water management issues.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he did not want to see the Gurnee Community Church denied use of that
parking lot. He wanted to make the point that a thorough analysis of the situation was not looked
at by the Building and Zoning Committee because in his opinion the right people are not on the
Committee. He thought about the snow and ice issue when Al Maden of Rolf Campbell gave his
testimony at the Plan Commission meeting. Mr. Grosskopf has not seen Mr. Maden involved in
other plans recently. He did not see Rolf Campbell’s review of anything, including snow
removal, at the Great Northern Resort, the Rohrman property and CenterPoint. He asked what
was the need for Mr. Maden’s testimony on the Gurnee Community Bank project?

Mayor Rudny stated Village staff consults with Mr. Maden on a regular basis and has for years.
When Mayor Rudny was on the Plan Commission, Mr. Maden commented on every plan before




them. In the case of the bank, there was concern from a traffic standpoint and a land planning
standpoint.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he only asked about three (3) recent projects.

Mayor Rudny responded that he does not know. He stated the Building and Zoning Committee
did not review the old police station property before it was razed. The Committee is assigned to
determine the use of the property after the razing. The Committee will also be addressing other
floodplain property the Village owns.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he read a headline about a planned memorial on the site of the old police
station. He asked that amidst all the confusion, the Village Board not hasten to put up the
memorial until there is more public input on the issue. It is not appropriate with how explosive
the issue has been to rush something through.

Mayor Rudny stated it is not being rushed through. It is being addressed by the Building and
Zoning Committee. Their meetings are public. The individuals involved recognize the
sensitivity of the issue. Two (2) professionals are donating their time to the project. It will be
well reviewed and thoroughly thought out.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he had a comment for Trustee Wasser regarding her Letter to the Editor of
the News-Sun rebutting a District 56 supporter. The issue was revenue sharing. He asked if she
stated the Village boundaries are the same as the Gurnee Park District boundaries?

Trustee Wasser stated she did not know if she stated that verbatim. She stated they share the
same or similar boundaries. She was being chastised for the Village giving money to the
Aquatic Center. Her point in that letter was that the Aquatic Center serves all the residents of
Gurnee as opposed to how the school districts were divided eons ago and each district serves a
different set of residents.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he had a map with the Gurnee Park District boundaries which are quite
different than the Village boundaries. He requested she have accurate information when she
writes letters.

Trustee Wasser stated her information was stated correctly.

Mr. Grosskopf stated he wanted it to be known that Trustee Wasser and Trustee Thoma did not
sign the letter supporting the last Gurnee District 56 referendum.

From the audience, Mr. Steve Carlson, 36235 Mill Court, member of the Lake County Board,
stated he knows Ward Miller and he talked to him about his concerns and the statements he made
were made with his knowledge to that time.

From the audience, Mr. Jack Sojer, 1012 Oakwood Street, stated he has been attending Plan
Commission and Village Board meetings. He is learning a lot, but he can recognize hard work.
He stated he has respect for the Village Board members. He wants to recognize the work of
Trustee Thoma and Trustee Chamberlain, but especially Trustee Wasser. She does an excellent
job for the neighbors. He recognizes compassion and caring.

From the audience, Mr. Ross Sorrentino, 1031 Oakwood Street, stated he started attending
meetings because of the storage unit going up in the neighborhood. He asked if any of the
Trustees is responsible for the area of their neighborhood?

Mayor Rudny responded the Trustees are elected at large, which means they all represent the
entire Village.

Mr. Sorrentino stated he wished to recognize Trustees Thoma and Wasser for the hard work they
put in with the neighbors on Oakwood. They put a lot of time and effort into what the neighbors
wanted. He suggested that Mayor Daley could put an “X” in the parking lot at the old police
station. He stated his vision for Old Grand is some place where residents could spend the day




shopping and walking up and down the streets. There is a lot of bickering going on and the
Trustees need to take a leadership role and Mayor Rudny needs to take charge and not let Gurnee
fall by the wayside because of politics. We will be watching to see what you want in ten (10) to
fifteen (15) years. Gurnee needs to be a great place where people will want to come. He and a
lot of other people will be voting on what the vision is for Gurnee and Old Grand Avenue. Don’t
allow the river to run our way of thinking. Instead of deadening the corridor of Old Grand
Avenue and O’Plaine Road, where Gurnee first took hold, let’s embrace the river and make it a
plus to have the river run through our Village and not a negative. Are there things that we can
do with our representatives downstate to make something happen there? He wants to know
where everyone stands on the “old town”? Let’s make it unigue to Gurnee.

He stated at the Plan Commission meeting we were talking about where we will put the snow
and bushes and twenty-four (24) hour ATMs on the bank site at 1:30 a.m. The big concern was
the complaints of the two (2) people who lived across the street from the bank and they weren’t
there at 1:30 a.m. Everyone is here because they care about Gurnee and what it will be in the
future. He asked if there was a Veterans’ Statue on Old Grand?

Mayor Rudny responded the war memorial was moved to the new police facility in Veterans’
Memorial Park.

Mr. Sorrentino suggested honoring Gurnee’s Marines at that park with something special where
it belongs, not between a church and a saloon.

Mayor Rudny stated the Veterans’ Memorial Park has a Walk of Honor, so it is for all Veterans.
There is a brick for Geoffrey Morris there.

Mr. Sorrentino said we have a brick and now we are going to have entire memorial for one (1)
marine. Are we going to put up another park for each one that dies?

Mayor Rudny stated that is being addressed. He stated we did lose another marine who didn’t
live in Gurnee, but went to Warren Township High School and Geoffrey Morris’ father is going
to be helping with the park. It may be a park dedicated to all the soldiers who have died in Iraq
and Afghanistan. He doesn’t believe Gurnee lost anyone in Desert Storm. Warren Township’s
War Memorial does address all the soldiers that died fighting for our country in all of the wars,
even back to the Civil War.

Mr. Sorrentino stated any future building in the floodplain should be raised five (5) feet above
the floodplain and then roll with it. Let’s make this corridor something that we are proud of —
like we are proud of the other side of Gurnee. He stated there is a rumor that when Mayor
Welton left office there was $12,000,000.00 in the bank and now we don’t have it.

The Village Administrator stated the Village has not used any of the reserves.

Mr. Sorrentino stated there is another rumor that there is $3,000,000.00 that can’t be accounted
for. There was furniture bought and now the furniture is not here.

Mayor Rudny asked when people hear rumors and find out the truth to please call the person
with the false information and tell them the truth.

Mr. Sorrentino asked the Village Board to stop rumors. We are all united for Gurnee.

Trustee Chamberlain stated Mr. Sorrentino is doing the best think in coming and asking. Mr.
Grosskopf wants to spread lies.

The Village Administrator stated the only furniture purchased in the last three (3) years was for
the new Police station. It was about $420,000.00 worth and it is all at the Police station.

Mr. Sorrentino stated he hoped the Village Board would share in his vision for Gurnee and Old
Grand and keep the area growing. He wants to know if he has to move to a nicer place, because
he will. He has heard there was vandalism at Trustees houses.

Trustee Wasser and Trustee Thoma stated the vandalism occurred at their houses.




Mr. Sorrentino stated this is what’s happening in Gurnee and it’s not going forward. It is up to
the Mayor and the Village Board to harness this and run on where we are going to take Gurnee.

Mayor Rudny stated he will be giving his vision of the Old Grand Corridor and the Village
Center, which includes O’Plaine Road to Washington Street. There are a lot of good things
going on. He asked that Mr. Sorrentino meet him and walk down Old Grand and he will give the
history of how that zoning district was formed. There is a plan in place and it has been moving
forward. The Old Grand area was originally mostly residential, but it was older homes and they
were deteriorating.

Back in the 1970’s, the administration at the time felt allowing a combination of commercial and
residential would help the area and it has. There are a number of businesses that are thriving in
the area. There are also parks and public land.

Mr. Sorrentino stated it would be nice to have a Starbucks there; people would want to move
there.

Mayor Rudny stated something like that doesn’t happen overnight. He thinks the development
of the Washington Street and O’Plaine Road area is somewhat unigue.

Mr. Sorrentino stated you have three (3) government buildings right there. Where is the unique
restaurant? Mix it up a little.

Mayor Rudny stated the East Grand Gateway has good things happening there. The Village has
put some money and landscaping into the area.

Mr. Sorrentino stated there are all the same chain restaurants on the west side with nothing
unigue.

From the audience, Mr. Jeff Romano, 1915 Pine Meadow, asked where the issue of a train
station for Gurnee stands?

Mayor Rudny stated it is extremely costly and will take Federal funds so there is a consortium
that includes Green Oaks and the City of Waukegan working together to try to encourage that.
The idea is to do a joint train station with Waukegan at the old Lakehurst site. The only location
Gurnee has is in the flood plain and there would be parking issues. It probably won’t happen for
at least five (5) years.

Trustee Thoma requested the meeting minutes from December 6, 2004 and January 3, 2005 be
removed from the consent agenda.

Damijonaitis moved, seconded by Wasser, to approve the amended consent agenda as presented.

RRoll Call, Aye: Honaitis; 5
KovarikDamijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: NeneNone
Absent: NoneNone - Motion

Carried.

The Village Administrator read the amended consent agenda for an omnibus vote as follows:




Approval of the minutes from the December 20, 2004 meeting, and

v
e of Gurnee—and-the-Solid\Waste-Agencv—o

Amending Chapter 78, Section 78-61, Schedule A, of the Gurnee Municipal Code by designating

certain streets as stop streets within the Estates at Churchill Hunt Subdivision, and to publish in
pamphlet form, and

a <’——[ Formatted: Tab stops: 4.39", Left + Not at 1" + 2"

Avenue (State Rte. 132) to a point 121.25 feet south thereof, and to publish in pamphlet form,

and

124. Approval of ,
Ordinance 2005-08 Accepting a permanent bus shelter, public utility and drainage easement
from Mr. David Berkson (by and along parts of State Rte. 132 at Pine Grove Avenue), and to
publish in pamphlet form, and

43.5. Approval of Ordinance 2005-09 Extending a moratorium on the establishment of off-
premise advertising signs by amending Ordinance #2003-06, and to publish in pamphlet form,
and

6. Approval of Ordinance 2005-10 Accepting the Final Plat of Subdivision of Gold’s Gym Re-
subdivision, and to publish in pamphlet form, and




7. Approval of Engineering Division’s request for authorization to solicit Requests for
Qualifications for engineering design services for the Grandview Avenue Water Main
Improvement Project, and

8. Approval of Firemedic David Douglass’ request to pursue his Associates Degree in Fire
Science Technology from the College of Lake County through the Village’s Tuition Assistance

Program, and

9. Approval of request from The Salvation Army to conduct their two (2) annual fundraising
events: A. Donut Day on June 3 and June 4, 2005; B. Christmas Kettles from November 18
through December 24, 2005, and

10. Approval of Payroll for the Period ending January 27, 2005 in the amount of $542,560.38,
and

11. Approval of Payroll Transfer Journal for the Period ending January 27, 2005 in the amount
of $578,634.09, and

12. Approval of Bills for the Period ending February 7, 2005 in the amount of $445, 361.27.

Thoma moved, seconded by Damijonaitis, to approve the amended consent agenda for an
omnibus vote as read.

Roll Call, Aye: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None
Absent: None Motion Carried.

Trustee Thoma stated that in the meeting minutes of December 6, 2004 on page 5147A, the two
italicized words in line five (5) were to be removed with the sentence reading “Negative
concerns expressed during the process were resolved.”

Damijonaitis moved, seconded by Thoma, to approve the amended minutes of the December 6,
2004 Regular Meeting.

Roll Call, Avye: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None
Absent: None Motion Carried.

Trustee Thoma stated she was not present for the January 3, 2005 meeting and does not feel
comfortable approving the minutes.

Chamberlain moved, seconded by Damijonaitis, to approve the minutes of the Reqular Megting
of January 3, 2005.

Roll Call, Ave: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None
Absent: None
Abstain: Thoma 5 Aye, 1 Abstain Motion Carried.

Thoma moved, seconded by Chamberlain, to approve a Proclamation designating February 2005
as National African American History Month in the Village of Gurnee.

Roll Call, Aye: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None
Absent: None Motion Carried.

The Village Administrator stated the Village Board received a memo from the Associate Planner
regarding granting a Special Use Permit to United Propane and Energy allowing a propane




distributor’s and sales facility at 3895 Clearview Court. The memo included the Plan
Commission’s Findings of Fact and unanimous favorable recommendation.

Thoma moved, seconded by Wasser, to approve Ordinance 2005-11 granting a Special Use
Permit to United Propane and Energy allowing a propane distributor’s and sales facility at 3895
Clearview Court, and to publish in pamphlet form.

Roll Call, Aye: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None
Absent: None Motion Carried.

The Village Administrator stated the Village Board received a memo from the Associate Planner
regarding re-zoning property from R-2 to R-3 on the petition of Michael Rogers (3701 Florida
Avenue). He stated the property is located on the southwest corner of Magnolia Avenue and
Florida Avenue. Parcels to the east and south are zoned R-3. The proposed parcel is one
hundred and sixty-five (165) feet wide and is to be divided into two (2) lots, which meets the
minimum requirements.

Wasser moved, seconded by Balmes, to approve Ordinance 2005-12 Rezoning property from the
R-2 District to the R-3 District on the petition of Michael Rogers (3701 Florida Avenue), and to
publish in pamphlet form.

Roll Call, Aye: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None
Absent: None Motion Carried.

The Village Administrator stated the Village Board received a memo from the Associate Planner
regarding major building/site changes per the East Grand Gateway Overlay District for the
property located at 3747 Grand Avenue (Temps Now) as recommended by the Plan Commission.
The property is located at the southeast corner of Waveland Avenue and Grand Avenue. The
building has been vacant for a number of years. Temps Now, the new owner of the property,
wants to renovate the building and property on an incremental approach. The Plan Commission
forwarded a favorable recommendation, provided they return with the remainder of the plans by

May 2005.

Trustee Chamberlain asked how long the building has been empty?

The Village Administrator responded for at least eight (8) to nine (9) years.

From the audience, Mr. Scott Poland, one of the owners of Temps Now, introduced Mark
DiGanci, the architect for the project.

From the audience, Mr. Mark DiGanci stated they will be doing new window penetrations in the
rear of the building. The roof has been redone, all mechanical systems have been replaced, and
the entire interior will be redone. The large sign will be removed and replaced with a monument
sign. The exterior lighting has been redone. At the present time, nine (9) hardwood trees will be
added and a complete landscape study will be completed. The big push was to get Temps Now
into the building. The three thousand (3,000) sq. feet at the front of the building will be open for
lease. Part of the facade design will be incorporated around the new tenant. The landscaping,
exterior changes and parking will be addressed in May.

Trustee Wasser commended Temps Now for making the changes and for moving to East Grand
Avenue.

Wasser moved, seconded by Thoma, to approve major building/site changes per the East Grand
Gateway Overlay District for the property located at 3747 Grand Avenue (Temps Now) as
recommended by the Plan Commission, including the Plan Commission’s recommendations and
to publish in pamphlet form.

Roll Call, Aye: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None




Absent: None Motion Carried.

The Village Administrator stated the Village Board received a memo from the Village Planner
regarding proposed sign changes for the Hyundai of America dealership at 6301 Grand Avenue.
There was miscommunication between the proprietor and the sign contractor.

Last month, sign changes for this dealership were brought forward, but those signs are not
consistent with what Hyundai is looking at for a flagship store.

From the audience, Mr. Mark Batista, the Rohrman Group, stated the dealership is open for
business. He stated they are asking for an additional twenty-eight (28) sq. feet on the monument
sign at the front of the building. Hyundai has a new image program that started at the beginning
of the year, which indicates specific signage for all dealerships nationwide. The handout
presented to the Village Board shows the Hyundai insignia as required.

Trustee Thoma asked what year Hyundai notified dealers of the changes?

Mr. Batista responded they were notified in March 2004.

Trustee Thoma asked if he was aware almost a year ago that the signage before the Village
Board previously was wrong?

Mr. Batista stated when the dealership came before the Village Board last month, they asked for
changes on the wall signage because they received notification from the sign company that the
monument sign had already been approved with the additional square feet. It wasn’t until 2-1/2
weeks ago with the receipt of a confirmation letter from the sign contractor stating the signs
being built were the ones approved with the PUD Agreement and not the Hyundai required signs
that the Rohrman Group realized the error.

Mayor Rudny stated he doesn’t really understand what it is the Rohrman Group is asking for. If
this is a major change, it may be sent back to the Plan Commission because this is deviating
substantially from what was originally approved with the PUD. Hyundai Corporate needs to
abide by the agreements signed with municipalities.

Trustee Thoma stated as part of the agreement, there were to be no cars parked on the green
space and up until today cars were parked on the green space. The Rohrman Group needs to
keep an eye on this situation. She considers the signage to be a major change that should be sent
back to the Plan Commission.

Trustee Chamberlain asked the Village Planner for her recommendation.

From the audience, Tracy Velkover, Village Planner, stated it was more a question for the
Village Attorney because there are definitions of what major and minor changes are. There is
one definition about changes to final government covenants/agreements. This exhibit was
attached to the PUD Agreement. She would defer that recommendation to the Village Attorney.
It is taking the sign from eight (8) sq. feet to forty-five (45) sq. feet and there is an issue with not
being able to meet the setback. There is a fourteen (14) foot green space with a minimum
requirement of a seven and a half (7-1/2) foot setback and the sign is ten (10) feet wide.

Trustee Chamberlain asked what would be the downside of that sign overhanging the parking
area?

The Village Planner responded a departure from the setback requirement could set a bad
precedent.

Trustee Wasser asked with the modifications to signage approved last month and this increase,
will the Rohrman Group exceed the signage maximum?

The Village Planner stated they are still under the maximum limit.

Trustee Wasser concurs with Trustee Thoma that it should be sent back to the Plan Commission.




Trustee Damijonaitis agrees it is a major change. This proposed sign looks like a pole sign and
the Village is trying to get rid of those.

The Village Attorney stated if the Village Board is willing to provide for technical deviations, a
letter in the form of a motion could be attached to the agreement. In regard to the setback issue,
the leading edge of the sign violates the setback. He suggested the sign post remain in the same
position, but slide the sign to the south.

Mr. Batista stated the pedestal would remain in position and the sign would slide back three (3)
feet to meet the setback.

Mayor Rudny stated these are Plan Commission issues and they will look at the details.

The Village Attorney asked if the issue is going back to the Plan Commission for a Public
Hearing or for refinement?

Mayor Rudny stated the Village Board can remand it back to the Plan Commission as a minor
amendment. The Plan Commission is in a better position to see how this change impacts the
whole site.

Mr. Batista stated there are signs that were approved under the PUD agreement that they are not
even using.

Wasser moved, seconded by Thoma, to remand the approval of sign changes for the Hyundai of
America Dealership at 6301 Grand Avenue to the Plan Commission as a minor change with a
request for recommendations from the Plan Commission.

Roll Call, Ave: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None
Absent: None Motion Carried.

The Village Administrator stated the annual request for new squad cars is before the Village
Board. The cut-off for ordering from the State Program is March 15, 2005. He stated the two
(2) low bids are Landmark Ford in Springfield, lllinois and Miles Chevrolet in Decatur, Illinois.
Because of the issue with Ford regarding lawsuits relative to the safety of the cars, Chief Jones is
recommending that we switch to the Chevrolet Impalas. They are the Police Squad package.
The seven (7) replacement squads and the detective car are necessary. The Village is getting
three (3) years out of the squads now and that is about as good as you can expect. The question
is if you need to add another car for additional personnel. This is a budget issue and the numbers
are going to be tight for additional personnel.

Trustee Wasser asked if this issue could be held off until the budget sessions in early March? It
would provide an opportunity to discuss the maintenance schedule on these cars.

Trustee Damijonaitis asked if the Village Board approves the request as presented with nine (9)
cars is the Village committed to buying the vehicles?

The Village Administrator stated if we order the cars, we are committed to purchasing.

Trustee Damijonaitis stated the Village Board can’t commit until they have had budget
discussions.

Trustee Chamberlain stated he thinks the Village Board should take the Village Administrator’s
recommendation and purchase eight (8) cars and if we want to add one (1) later, then we can.

Mayor Rudny stated he went through the replacement schedule. It looks as if when the Police
Department has a vehicle that isn’t that old but has considerable miles, it is used for something
other than a squad car.




Chamberlain moved, seconded by Damijonaitis, to approve the order of seven (7) squad cars and
one (1) detective car for fiscal year 2005-2006 from Miles Chevrolet under the State Bid as per
the Village Administrator’s recommendation.

Trustee Damijonaitis asked if the budget would reflect the increased cost of carrying inventory
for two (2) different makes of squad cars?

The Village Administrator stated there may be an increase.

Roll Call, Avye: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Kovarik
Nay: Wasser
Absent: None 5 Ayes, 1 Nay Motion Carried.

Trustee Balmes stated she wanted to commend the Management Analyst/P1O for the Annual
Report Calendar. She asked if there was the possibility of including dates for the schools and
other organizations?

The Village Administrator stated Village staff will look at that. He stated Patrick Muetz
basically took the Annual Report from beginning to end, and did the vast majority of the work
and is to be congratulated.

Mayor Rudny stated he has had good comments on the Annual Report/Calendar.

Trustee Damijonaitis suggested the calendar run from February to February since it doesn’t go
out until then.

From the audience, Mr. Hank Schwarz, 5062 Glendale Drive, stated the resident survey results in

the Annual Report were very good. The lifeblood of the community is the collection of the

Amusement and Sales Taxes. He asked if the Village surveyed the businesses to see how we are

doing with them? He thinks that would be a good barometer because they keep the community
oing.

The Village Administrator stated they haven’t done that in the past.

Thoma moved, seconded by Chamberlain, to adjourn the meeting.

Roll Call, Avye: Damijonaitis, Chamberlain, Balmes, Thoma, Wasser, Kovarik
Nay: None
Absent: None Motion Carried.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:22 p.m. by Mayor Rudny.

Mary Jo Kollross
Village Clerk



Formatted: Normal, Justified, Tab stops: 1", Left + 2", Left]

Nohne

Nays

NOHC

™oy

Nona

INEIVA

NOHE

™oy

Nona

INEIVA

™NOHE

™~y







Nonea
NOHE

INEIVA

1on Carriad
HoHOR-CafrHea:

Mot

Naone
™~OhHE

Ny
Ahcant:
ABSERt:







Nona
TNUTTC

INEIVE

™~y





































